
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 2, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 854 3971 8404 

Password: 268668 
 
 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Richard Mathey 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action) Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business  Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Update Kim White, Incident Commander 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee) (For Action) Ed Tardoni 

1. Employee Policy-Cultural Diversity   

C.  Board Policy (from the Governance Committee) (For Action)       Barbara Sowada 

1. Attendance of Board Committee Meetings 

D. Termination and Appeal Policy Update Richard Mathey 

E. Outstanding – Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on the agenda as a reminder of 
uncompleted business) 

1. Credentialing Criteria (presented following approval of new medical staff bylaws) 

2. Employee Policies (from the Human Resources Committee) 

a. Employee Corrective Action 

b. Introductory Period 

VI. New Business  Taylor Jones  

A. Board Policy (from the Governance Committee) (For Review)       Barbara Sowada 

1. Contracts Requiring Board Approval Policy 

B. Letters of Appointment (For Action)  

1. Antimicrobial Stewardship Program (ASP) Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer 

2. Infection Prevention Program (IP) Kristy Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer 

C. Utilization Management Plan (For Action) Kristy Nielson 

D. Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Plan Priorities (For Action) Kara Jackson, 

  Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety 

E. CARES Act Lab Project, Construction Manager At Risk,  Irene Richardson 
and Contract from the Architect Approval (For Action) 

1/226



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 2, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 854 3971 8404 

Password: 268668 
 
 

AGENDA 

 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Marty Kelsey 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Richard Mathey  

1. Cerner Electronic Medical Record  Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer 
Presentation and Request (For Action) 

2. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

August Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Ed Tardoni 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Richard Mathey 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel 

A. Contract Consent Agenda (For Action)  

1. Cerner Business Agreement 

2. HVAC Upgrade Project Engineering Services 

3. Plan 1 Professional Design Services for MOB Entrance Reconfiguration 

4. UVC Upgrade Project Engineering Services 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, Medical Staff President  

XI. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/226



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/226



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 5, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on August 5, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater 

County Board of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Tardoni read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a story brought to her by Ms. Patty O’Lexey, RN, Education. A family 

member of a patient wanted to reach out and express gratitude to the amazing team at the Hospital. 

One of Ms. O’Lexey’s dear friends was brought in and family were concerned they could not be 

with her. Ms. O’Lexey said she was told Dr. Michael Neyman, Dr. Alicia Gray, and Ms. Melissa 

Anderson were amazing in the care they provided. Everyone went above and beyond to comfort 

the family. We know these are difficult times for everyone. Ms. O’Lexey spoke with family the 

following day and they were so pleased. They told her it takes a village and we live in an amazing 

village. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the July 1, 2020, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the 

June 29, 2020, special meeting as presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

4/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes of the July 23, 2020, special meeting as 

presented was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Command, reported 4,999 tests have been completed with 213 positives, 

which is a 4.5% positive rate. She said this is where we have been for the past couple of weeks. 

She said we had some issues with some tests. The State is doing a courier service every day. Last 

week there were 38 tests that were left in the car and we are having to contact people to re-test. 

Ms. White said we are also offering a rapid test thru the swabbing station. The test requires the 

patient to be experiencing symptoms and have a doctor’s order. We are working with the schools 

to be able to get testing more readily available to hopefully keep schools open and keep kids and 

the community safe. Ms. White said we have had 14 employees test positive. All have recovered 

and are back at work. Ms. White said Sheriff Grossnickle has donated the use of the vehicle outside 

the front entrance for the swabbing team. It is working really well and we appreciate him offering 

that to us. Ms. White said we hope to continue using it until we get our own mobile center. We are 

still unable to get our regular supply of disposable N95 masks. We have purchased more of the re-

usable masks and filters. Disposable gowns are still difficult to obtain. If we are able to get personal 

protective equipment (PPE), the prices are up dramatically between 100-500% increases. Ms. 

White said that will be a financial concern moving forward. She said we continue to be successful 

in that any employees who have tested positive have been due to outside exposure and not exposure 

within the Hospital. She said the staff has done a phenomenal job with the different rules and 

restrictions put into place. Ms. White thanked the staff for all they are doing. Mr. Jones asked if 

the increase on the price of the PPE is just because they can. Ms. White said that is the consensus 

and he said that is unfortunate if that is the case. Mr. Tardoni shared an observation that the outside 

exposure is people are traveling all over the country and not paying much attention and then 

coming back home. He said he sees cars from other states all throughout our community. Mr. Jones 

thanked Ms. White and said we appreciate her report. 

 

Mental Health Conditions – Application Forms 

Mr. Jones reported Dr. Lauridsen was unavailable to be on the meeting call yet and asked if anyone 

else could speak to the form. Dr. Sowada said she was confused on some of the wording on some 

of the forms and asked for more information. Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Director,  

said the reason behind this is because we received notification from The Joint Commission (TJC) 

and asked if she could come back to this later in the meeting. Later in the meeting, Ms. Downs 

shared her screen to review the former version of the form and the new form. She said the update 

has been approved by the Medical Staff and is in compliance with TJC requirements. Dr. Sowada 

thanked her for the clarification. Motion to approve the revised form was made by Dr. Sowada;  

second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

 

  

5/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

NEW BUSINESS 

Employee Policies 

Mr. Jones said the employee policies are for review. 

 

Cultural Diversity: No discussion. 

 

Communication Systems: Mr. Tardoni said the wrong copy got in the packet. He said it is the 

one presented to the Human Resources Committee and the changes are not showing on that. He 

said when it comes back to the Board, we will make sure those modifications get in there. Mr. 

Jones said it will be in for review again and not for a vote. Mr. Tardoni said “employee” should 

say “users”. Mr. Kelsey said he has some comments and wants to send out a short memo addressing 

the comments he has and he said he can have them out in the next few days. 

 

Board Policy 

 

Attendance of Board Committee Meetings: No discussion. 

 

Contracts Requiring Board Approval: Mr. Kelsey asked if, on items three thru eight, are those 

entries contemplated as examples of the contracts the Board would consider approving. Mr. 

Mathey said those are examples of contracts the Board would approve if greater than $25,000. He 

said the purpose is to describe the contracts that must be approved before they are signed and he 

reviewed the list. Mr. Kelsey said before starting Roman numeral three maybe make an 

introductory sentence or two clarifying that because it would be helpful to the reader. Mr. Mathey 

said they will review again at the Governance Committee meeting on Friday. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson commended the Incident Command (IC) Team and Ms. White for steering that 

committee and doing such a great job. Ms. Richardson said IC sends out their daily information 

and work with the staff to help them understand we need to wear our masks and stay socially 

distant from each other and it is working well. The staff has done a tremendous job with that and 

she again thanked the IC Team for their tireless work to keep each other and our patients safe. Ms. 

Richardson said she continually reminds people when you are out and about to wear your face 

mask, practice good hand hygiene, stay socially distant, and make sure our community understands 

how to stay safe. She said this is new for all of us and she thinks we are doing an excellent job 

over the past six months. We have to keep this up and keep each other safe. Ms. Richardson said 

we continue offering person-centered care workshops with smaller groups because we do not want 

to lose momentum. Ms. Mella Grainger from Healthcare Strategies has been here this week. She 

is helping us with some Quality and Joint Commission work. She will send us a report with 

recommendations and observations. Ms. Richardson reported Dr. Sowada, Mr. Jones and Ms. 

Richardson thought it would be a good idea to create a plan and an ad hoc revenue & consumer 

steering committee to enhance and bring new services to the Hospital. She said there is a lot of 

potential there. The group has created several initiatives and are still working on those plans. Ms. 

Richardson said we want to have project managers and formally roll out the plans in the very near 

future. Ms. Richardson said we have seen some ways to provide different and new services to our 

patients and we want to make sure our patients get the healthcare they need. Ms. Richardson said 

6/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

the auditors were here remotely last week. They also performed their interim audit remotely. Ms. 

Richardson said Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient 

Financial Services, Ms. Jan Layne, Controller, Ms. Erika Taylor, Staff Accountant, and their teams 

did a great job getting all of the required information to the auditors electronically. Ms. Richardson 

referenced a recent Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) accounting rule on how to 

account for the CARES Act money e-mail. She said there is another meeting August 17 to obtain 

more information on accounting for the CARES Act money. Ms. Richardson cautioned things are 

always changing. She said if anyone gets an e-mail from her that looks suspicious, she asks that 

you treat it like that and please let her know so she is aware but do not respond to the message and 

do not do what it asks you to do. Ms. Richardson announced Ms. Ann Clevenger accepted the 

position of Chief Nursing Officer (CNO). Ms. Clevenger is excited to return to MHSC following 

her work at Western Wyoming Community College (WWCC). Ms. Richardson said we had some 

excellent candidates and want to thank them. She said we are excited to have Ms. Clevenger join 

us and we wish Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO, well and thank her for all the years of service she has 

given us. Dr. Nielson is willing to stay on as long as needed to help us with the transition. Mr. 

Kelsey said maybe not all the Board members know that Dr. Nielson also came from WWCC. Ms. 

Richardson announced Dr. Lex Auguiste OB/GYN, will join us in September and Dr. Prachi 

Pawar, Neurologist, in October. Dr. Joshua Binks, Radiation Oncology, joined us in July. We 

welcome them and are excited to have them join us. Ms. Richardson reported on the Wyoming 

State Loan and Investment Board (SLIB) grant money. She thanked Ms. Tiffany Marshall, 

Foundation Director, for writing these grants. Ms. Marshall worked with Ms. Mary Fischer, Lab 

Director, Ms. Love, and Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, to get the information and submit our 

applications. Based on what we heard from SLIB, we looked at other opportunities for 

applications. The HVAC system project will help us tremendously. Ms. Richardson listed several 

other projects that would help greatly. She said the SLIB meets the following day and we will be 

available to answer any questions on our new applications. Ms. Richardson thanked staff, leaders, 

physicians, the Trustees, and Commissioners, and said she thinks everyone has done an excellent 

job working together. We continue working together to keep our community safe. She said July 

31, 2021, is the spend-by date for CARES Act money. Mr. Jones said a ton of work is going into 

the ad hoc committee and said Dr. Sowada has been doing a great amount of work and thinks it 

will be a great work when rolled out. Mr. Jones said if you see a suspicious e-mail, you can always 

hover over the name and see that it isn’t Ms. Richardson’s real e-mail address. Mr. Jones thanked 

Ms. Richardson and Ms. Love for another clean audit. He said we have them year after year after 

year and that does not happen by accident. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone for the reports and information in the meeting packet. He said the 

chair reports really help the people who don’t attend those committee meetings. 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Mr. Kelsey said the time he and Mr. Mathey had with Ms. Grainger was very interesting and they 

are looking forward to her report. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks Quality is doing really well and there 

are probably some things we need to focus on. He said they will share the consultant report with 

the Board. 

 

7/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the information is in the packet and he nothing to add.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Committee did not meet in July. He asked Ms. Love to review a narrative. 

Ms. Love said the biggest change with the auditors is the GASB and CARES Act. She said we will 

have a loss for June due to the accounting change, however our total gain will remain unchanged. 

She said we have seen our volumes come back. Ms. Love said we must use the CARES Act money 

by July 31, 2021. We will carry over $9M of CARES Act money into FY21.  Ms. Love said $7.4M 

of accelerated Medicare payments will begin. We are still working to close July. Dr. Sowada asked 

for the average daily census for July. Ms. Love said it looks like it was 10.7 in July. We budgeted 

at 9.9. Dr. Sowada asked if Emergency Department visits are coming up. Ms. Love said we are 

still down about 15% in July. We had 1,200 visits this July and 1,400 last July. Ms. Love said the 

clinic should see one of their highest revenue and collections months. She said we can use CARES 

money to offset increased expenses due to Covid and higher costs for PPE. Mr. Jones thanked Ms. 

Love, Mr. Cheese, and their staff. Ms. Love thanked Ms. Layne, Ms. Taylor, and Mr. Cheese for 

all of their hard work with the auditors.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $782,425.38 as presented was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. Mr. Cheese said he expects the next 

several months should be down to around this number as long as we can keep the self-pay piece 

of the accounts receivable where it is right now. 

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the chair report and draft minutes are in the packet. He said we will likely need a 

special meeting before too long. Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B, is trying to decide between a traditional 

build bid process or a construction manager at risk process as we figure out how to install the 

equipment. Mr. Kelsey said we, as a hospital, will be buying a significant amount of equipment 

and we need to figure out how to install it.   

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Jones asked Ms. Marshall to provide an update. Ms. Marshall said the Foundation Board met 

the prior week and have some cool things going on. Mr. Matt Jackman and Mr. Craig Rood are 

new members on the Board and are excited to get their feet wet. She said they typically have an 

election of officers in July. The Board voted to postpone the election until October. Ms. Marshall 

said they are trying to build some committees to get out in the community. They chose to adopt 

the annual giving committee and all Board members are serving on that and have been meeting 

regularly. She said once that one is working well, we will work on identifying what the next 

committee will be. Mr. Jones thanked Ms. Marshall for her report.     

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the comments are in the board packet. 

8/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said she did not have anything to add.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board would discuss in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said there was nothing new to report. He said he thinks we are making good progress. 

Mr. Tardoni said the policies held up in Human Resources can be worded accordingly after the 

Med Staff Bylaws are complete and then we can move forward.  

 

Mr. Jones said it looks like everyone has jumped in to their new assignments and he appreciates 

everyone. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the Sweetwater Now contract on the consent agenda 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Ms. Downs said the Wyoming Board of Nursing changed their requirements for continuing 

medical education (CME) for practitioners. It is now tied to their board certification so they don’t 

really track the CME’s, the certifying board does. Ms. Downs said we updated the form to reflect 

what is being done. Both the old and new versions are included in the meeting packet. Mr. Jones 

read aloud a text message from Dr. Lauridsen for his report. Dr. Banu Symington, Hematology 

Oncology, was published in the Journal of Clinics Oncology. The Medical Executive Committee 

met July 28. Bylaws met July 13. The bylaws finalized for distribution to the General Medical 

Staff in the near term.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Jones said there was talk of a Quality Workshop in October. We would have October regular 

meeting, then the workshop, and no November regular meeting.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session for personnel. The motion to go into executive 

session was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  Mr. Jones said the 

Board would reconvene in 10 minutes. 

 

  

9/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 4:57 PM, the Board came out of executive session and the motion to resume regular session 

was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve hospital privileges for healthcare professionals as discussed in executive 

session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni.   

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from July 14, 2020  

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Christopher Hunnicutt, Radiology 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Bethany Lewis, Dermatology (U of U) 

 Dr. Eric Goldstein, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Justin Ly, Tele Radiology (VRC)  

3. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Johol Chan, OB/GYN 

 Dr. Neil Krulewitz, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Jeffrey Lane, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Wesley Pedicini, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Cody Christensen, Urology 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Frederick Welt, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

6. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 years) 

 Dr. James Rao, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Jamal Jones, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Jane Yee, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Graham Brant-Zawadzki, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

7. New Business 

 AHP CME Statement – update Nurse Practitioner requirements 

10/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 5, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 8 

The motion to approve the CEO to execute and sign the contract discussed executive session was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:59 PM.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

11/226



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 12, 2020 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via 

Zoom on August 12, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer. 

 

Mr. Jones said the purpose of the meeting is to give the CEO authorization for the projects the 

Board already gave her authorization for. He said there were legal reasons to have the meeting and 

asked Ms. Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel, to give an overview of the purpose of the meeting. 

Ms. Campbell said we have decided we do need a project manager and decided to use the 

construction manager at risk (CMAR) method. In order to do that we need to give Ms. Richardson 

the authority to get bids and identify the CMAR. Ms. Campbell cited W.S. 16-6-701 and 16-6-

707. She said this will be authorization for the HVAC, UV lights for HVAC, and front entrance of 

the medical office building. Mr. Kelsey said his understanding is Mr. Jake Blevins of ST&B has 

recommended to Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, to use the CMAR option. Mr. Blevins 

confirmed that was correct. He said it is based on time limits for incurring expenses by the deadline 

that are then eligible for reimbursement. He said we hope to see two to three pay application cycles 

by the deadline. Mr. Tardoni said we are in a unique situation. He asked what ST&B and the Board 

of Trustees can do, radical as it may be, to not leave any money on the table. He said we need to 

do what is legal and correct. Mr. Todd Spacek, ST&B, outlined the process. There was discussion 

of statutory requirements. Mr. Blevins reported on their progress to date. The motion to authorize 

the CEO of the Hospital to solicit proposals for CMAR for three projects identified as appropriate 

for this alternative delivery method and authorize the CEO to select the CMAR for the three 

projects presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Mr. Kelsey said he has done 

a couple of these types of projects. He asked if it would be appropriate to approve the project when 

we have the guaranteed maximum price (GMP). He said right now the Board doesn’t know what 

the total cost will be. Mr. Spacek said that is what they are doing at the University of Wyoming 

for their project and said that is typically the process. Mr. Kelsey amended his motion to include 

what he said before and add to provide that the CEO is given the authority to approve the CMAR 

project all the way through and including once we have received the GMP; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

Motion carried. The motion to authorize the CEO to solicit bids and to further authorize the CEO 

to select the successful bidder and award a bid for the mobile lab equipment, walk in lab 

equipment, PAPRs, and proning beds made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

12/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 12, 2020 Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

Page 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 2:37 PM.   

       

 

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

13/226



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8007197 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-CULTURAL DIVERSITY 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-Cultural Diversity 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is committed to providing an environment that encourages 

the talents and recognizes the uniqueness of each employee regardless of race, gender, age, cultural 

background, ethnicity, sexual orientation, disability, religion and other types of diversity. We believe a diverse 

workforce will help MHSC employees interact effectively and compassionately with our patients and in our 

community.  MHSC Mission, Values and Vision operate on the fundamental belief that individual and cultural 

differences are a reality, and that such differences will produce better idea, quality services and genuine 

compassionate care for all. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES-CULTURAL DIVERSITY. Retrieved 09/01/2020. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8007197/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 1

14/226

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



BOT Governance Policy Page 1 

Board Policy 

                                                                                                                                     

                                                                                         

Category:  Governance 

Title:  Attendance of Board Committee Meetings 

Original adoption:  September 2, 2020 

Revision: 

 

               

  

Purpose 
 
Standing Committees are an important part of the governance structure of the Board of Trustees 
(Board) of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. Although most of the detailed work of the Board is 
performed by its Committees, the Committees have no expressed or implied power or authority. 
Therefore, it is permissible for a Trustee, who is not an appointed member, to attend meetings of 
Committees of which s/he is not a member.  
 

Policy 
 
1. In the absence of an appointed trustee member, the President may appoint a trustee to be a 

temporary member of the Committee, who shall have voting privileges.   

2. For educational/informational purposes, Trustees may attend the meetings of Committees of which 
they are not appointed members. They shall not have voting privileges. Their attendance neither 
triggers a quorum nor indicates a public meeting.  

3. The Board President is an ex-officio member of all committees and may attend any Committee 
meeting without being in conflict of open meeting laws. 

4. All Board and Committee meeting shall comply with the Wyoming Open Meetings Act.1  

5. Under Wyoming’s Open Meetings Act notice of regularly scheduled committee meetings need not 
be given.   

6. Committees may meet in executive session provided that all executive sessions are in compliance 
with the Wyoming Open Meetings Act. 

 
 

 

                                                           
1 Wyoming Open Meetings Act which is statutes 16-4-401 to 16-4-408.  
 

Board of Trustees Policy Manual NO. 10 

15/226



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8161678 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: General - Housewide 
Reg. Standards: 

CONTRACTS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL 
POLICY 

 CONTRACTS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL POLICY 

PURPOSE: 

This Hospital wide policy describes the contracts that require Board approval before they become effective. 
Once approved the Board may direct the CEO to sign on behalf of the Board.   This policy does not apply to 

the hiring of Hospital employees other than Physicians and Non-Physician Providers. 

 I. Agreements requiring County Commission approval - as defined by Wyoming Statute § 18-8-301. This 
statute states that a contract in which the county hospital "engages in shared services and other cooperative 
ventures; enters into partnerships;  either alone or in conjunction with any other entity, form or be an interest 
owner of corporations, partnership, limited partnership, cooperative... or any other trust or association 
organized under the laws of this state" must be approved by the Board of Trustees and the County 
Commissioners before such an agreement is binding on any of the parties. Contracts anticipated by Wyoming 
Statutes §18-8-108 and 109 can only be negotiated, executed and agreed to by the Board of Trustees in 
conjunction with the Board of County Commissioners. 

II. Any contract equal to or greater than $25,000.00    This excludes service agreements (regardless of the 
dollar amount) attached to Board approved capital equipment.  The service agreements attached to this 
equipment can be signed and approved by the CEO and reported to the Board at the next Board meeting after 
approval.   

III. All Physician and Non-Physician Provider Employment Contracts 

IV.  All Hospital Consultant contracts 

V. All Hospital Management contracts 

VI. All Real estate transactions and any real property leases over $2000.00 month. 

VII.  All Legal settlements 

VIII. Any other contract the CEO or In-House Counsel wish to present to the Board for discussion and 
approval.   

A list of other contracts that have been approved by In-House Counsel and signed by the CEO will be provided 
to the Board at the Board meeting following internal approval of these contracts. 

Process After Contract is Approved and Signed 

CONTRACTS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL POLICY. Retrieved 08/28/2020. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8161678/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 2

16/226

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT
Attachments 

No Attachments 

All executed contracts, excluding Physician and Non-Physician Provider contracts, shall be submitted to In 
House Counsel when finalized. Physician and Non-Physician Provider contracts are housed in the 
Administration office. All other contracts shall be entered into the contract database and tracked for renewal 
and/or expiration dates by In House Counsel. Notice of contract renewal or expiration shall be provided to the 
CEO and responsible staff member for the contract by In House Counsel at least 90 days prior to the date 
required to terminate or renew the contract. For example,  if contract requires 180 days notice to terminate, the 
contract will be flagged for notice to responsible party and CEO 90 days prior to the start of the 180 day's 
required for notice of termination. 

CONTRACTS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL POLICY. Retrieved 08/28/2020. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8161678/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 2

17/226



18/226



19/226



COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 8266872 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: 1 year after approval 
Document Area: Case Management & Utilization 

Management 
Reg. Standards: CMS §482.30, TJC LD.04.02.05 

Utilization Management Plan 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

TEXT: 
I. Definitions 

A. Clinical Documentation Improvement: Improvement efforts focused on documentation of patient care 
activities that accurately and appropriately translates the care provided and clinical status to coded 
data (American Health Information Management Association [AHIMA], 2019).  

B. KEPRO: KEPRO is the Beneficiary and Family Centered Care Quality Improvement Organization 
(BFCC-QIO) representing the state of Wyoming, therefore representing MHSC. KEPRO is a branch 
of the Quality Improvement Organization working with Medicare beneficiaries to improve the quality 
of care. The function of KEPRO is to support improved quality delivery of care, protect the integrity 
and the Medicare Trust Fund, and to protect beneficiaries by addressing complaints from 
beneficiaries in a timely manner. KEPRO performs medical record reviews as requested by the 
beneficiary or appropriate representative (KEPRO, 2017). 

C. Recovery Audit Contractors (RAC): Recovery audit contractors function under the Centers for 
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to detect and correct improper payments that have been made 
in efforts to identify and correct future improper payments from occurring (CMS, 2018). The RAC 
process impacts MHSC as the organization bills fee-for-service programs for services delivered at 
MHSC to Medicare & Medicaid. 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) is professionally and ethically responsible for providing care, 
treatment and services within its capability, law and regulation.The Utilization Management Plan defines how 
MHSC reviews the services furnished by the organization and by members of the medical staff to patients 
entitled to, but not limited to, benefits under Medicare and Medicaid programs. 

There are times such care, treatment and services are denied because of payment limitations. In these 
situations the decisions to continue providing care, treatment and services or to discharge the patient is based 
solely on the patient's identified needs, the capacity of the organization to provide the care, and governing 
laws. This document will outline the process for decision making and care discussion for providing services 
within the capability, laws, and regulations governing Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. This 
document, which is reviewed annually by appropriate committees and organization leaders, also outlines 
practices to identify and act upon opportunities for improvement to maximize efficiency of services provided. 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 7

20/226

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

D. Quality Improvement Organization (QIO): Under direction of the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services, Quality Improvement Organizations function to partner with care providers, stakeholders, 
patients and their families to improve the delivery of care, enhance quality of life within communities, 
and decrease unnecessary health care spending. They function as resources to assist organizations 
in improving care. Mountain Pacific Quality Health is the Quality Innovation Network-Quality 
Improvement Organization (QIN-QIO) for Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. They represent 
the state of Wyoming (Mountain Pacific Quality Health, 2018) . 

II. Authority 

The Governing Board, as the Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board of Trustees, has ultimate 
accountability for the management of the quality, appropriateness, and clinical necessity of services. The 
Board of Trustees delegates the utilization management function to the Chief Executive Officer and the 
medical staff. The utilization management function is the responsibility of the Utilization Management 
Committee (UM Committee) that has been established as a standing committee of the medical staff. 
Utilization management responsibilities will be delegated by the president of the Medical Executive 
Committee who appoints physician members. The Utilization Management Plan is written and reviewed 
by the Utilization Management Committee and approved for adoption by the Medical Executive 
Committee and the Board of Trustees. 

III. Purpose 

The purpose of utilization management at MHSC is to: 

A. Assist in driving value in health care through collaboration, promotion of transparency, and the 
balance of quality, service, and cost (refer to MHSC’s Performance Improvement and Patient Safety 
Plan [PIPS]). 

B. Evaluate the effectiveness of the electronic medical record (EMR) in meeting the needs of quality 
and utilization services. 

C. Identify patterns of overuse, underuse, misuse and inefficient scheduling of services with 
recommended plans of corrective action. 

D. Assure effective and efficient utilization of hospital resources. 

E. Provide a mechanism for concurrent review of appropriateness of services. 

F. Comply with CMS guidelines/standards for utilization review. 

G. Assist in organizational improvement strategies based on identified opportunities. 

IV. Organization of the Utilization Management Committee 

A. Membership 

1. Physician members 

a. Physician members will be appointed annually by the president of the medical staff 

b. Committee will consist of at least two (2) physicians 

c. One (1) physician member must be present at each meeting 

d. The president of the Medical Staff will appoint the Physician Chair 

2. Non-physician members may include, but are not limited to: 

a. Administration 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 7

21/226



COPY

b. Health Information Management 

c. Nursing 

d. Quality 

e. Case Management 

f. Clinical Documentation Improvement 

g. Patient Financial Services 

h. Other health care practitioners and professionals as necessary 

B. No person holding any direct financial interest in the hospital will be eligible for appointment to the 
Committee. No physician will participate in review of any case in which he/she has been 
professionally involved. Cases under review in which both physician members have provided care 
will be deferred to another active physician of the medical staff for objective review and asked to 
present the information to the UM Committee members. 

C. The UM Committee will meet a minimum of at least three (3) times per year. The Committee may 
meet more frequently if needed as concurrent issues arise. 

1. A meeting may be called by any member of the Committee. 

2. The UM Physician Chair will be notified, as he/she may need to coordinate the meeting. 

D. A summary of UM activities and recommendations for any action believed to contribute to the 
improvement of patient care or appropriate use of resources will be reported to the Medical 
Executive Committee and to the Quality Committee of the Board. 

E. Recommendations for action requiring system and/or process changes will be referred to the PIPS 
committee or other appropriate committee/work team to carry out process change for improvement 
per the PIPS Plan. 

F. Recommendations for action or follow-up regarding individual provider performance or care delivery 
will be referred to MHSC's peer review/provider performance review process. 

G. Functions 

1. Concurrent review of outlier cases not meeting appropriateness and medical necessity of 
services. 

2. Retrospective outliers, as defined by the UM Committee, will be reviewed and identified through 
use of, but not limited to, the following data resources: 

a. Reports from the hospital’s data systems 

b. Results of review by the Quality Improvement Organization (QIO) 

c. Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) audit result letters 

d. Medicare denials 

e. PEPPER Report 

V. Methods of Review 

A. Referral of Reviews 

1. Any staff member at MHSC can initiate an inquiry for review as it pertains to utilization of 
resources and services. 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 7

22/226



COPY

a. Staff can begin the inquiry by following the appropriate chain of command within their 
respected department. 

b. The department leader will communicate the issue in question and provide supporting 
information to Case Management. 

c. Case Management to determine the appropriate course of action for additional referral to 
the Committee, escalation for review, or follow-up.  

2. In situations identified as needing immediate intervention as it relates to utilization of resources 
and services rendered, it is the expectation that identified issues will be communicated and 
discussed in the moment with the attending and/or ordering physician of services. If concerns 
are unable to be resolved, and if Case Management (CM) is unavailable to pursue immediate 
case review through the process outlined through the MHSC CM Physician Escalation Process 
(see attached flow process), an active UM physician may be contacted to initiate and assist with 
the concurrent review necessity. 

B. Concurrent Review 

1. Concurrent review includes review of the encounter for medical necessity for admission, 
necessity for continued hospital stay and utilization of resources by case management 
processes (see Appendices: MHSC Utilization Management Process Flow & MHSC CM 

Physician Escalation Process). 

a. If the patient does not meet criteria for admission, continued stay or medical necessity, the 
case is referred to the UM Committee Physician Chair for review. 

b. If necessary, the attending physician will be contacted for additional information. All 
information used for determining medical necessity must be evident and documented in the 
medical record by the attending physician. 

c. If the UM Committee Physician Chair has reason to believe the admission is not necessary, 
he/she will confer with the attending physician and afford him/her the opportunity to present 
his/her views. If the attending physician concurs medical necessity is not met, he/she will 
discharge the patient or correct the admission status following appropriate Condition Code 
44 Procedures per Medicare guidelines. 

d. If the attending physician does not concur with the determination made by the UM 
Committee Physician Chair, the case will be referred to a second (2nd) physician. If this 
additional review indicates justification for admission, the admission will be approved and 
Case Management will assign the next review date within three (3) days. 

e. If the UM Committee Physician Chair and the additional physician adviser determine that 
an admission is not medically necessary, they will complete a written hospital-issued notice 
of non-coverage (HINN letter), see attached. This notification will be distributed as soon as 
possible (preferably prior to or at the time of admission) to the patient and/or patient 
representative, the hospital, the attending physician and, as appropriate, the state agency 
for Medicaid patients and any other appropriate reviewing organization. The letter will be 
distributed by Case Management or other designated party. 

f. An attending physician or patient who disagrees with the decision of both physician 
advisers with respect to notice of non-coverage may request a reconsideration of the 
decision from the UM Committee physician members. 

g. For Medicare Patients Only: If the attending physician disagrees with the decision of the 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 7

23/226



COPY

UM Committee Physician Chair and the second physician adviser, the attending physician 
will contact KEPRO, a function of the Quality Improvement Organization (QIO), for an 
immediate review of the case. If the QIO agrees with the physician advisers a written notice 
of non-coverage will be given to the patient and/or patient representative, the attending 
physician, the hospital, and the QIO. If the QIO does not agree with the UM Committee 
Physician Chair and the second physician adviser, the admission will be approved. A 
physician/patient who disagrees with the QIO decision may request reconsideration of the 
decision from the QIO. The time frame and appeals process shall be followed as defined 
by the QIO guidelines. 

h. In all cases, only a physician will make a decision regarding appropriateness of admission. 

i. Actions taken during admission review will be documented by the UM physician within the 
hospital's data analytic system. 

2. On weekends and on days when the physician members of the Utilization Management 
Committee are unavailable, review decisions will be made by the hospital-employed hospitalist, 
general surgeon, pediatrician, obstetrician, orthopedist, or emergency medicine physician on 
call. Reviews must be conducted by a physician from a specialty that is different from the 
specialty that is being reviewed. 

C. Retrospective Review 

1. Retrospective review is performed under the following circumstances after the patient has been 
discharged: 

a. To address cases with issues that were not identified or sufficiently handled during 
concurrent review. 

b. To address trends in overuse, underuse or misuse of medical services. 

c. To review cases for which third party payers question or deny care. 

d. When required by third party payers. 

e. To respond to issues referred by other departments or committees. 

VI. Relationship with Fiscal Intermediary, State Agencies, Department of Health 
and Human Services and the QIO 

A. The procedures and minutes of the UM Committee will be made available for confidential review as 
required by the fiscal intermediary, authorized state agencies, the Department of Health and Human 
Services and, as appropriate, the QIO. 

VII. Confidentiality 

A. WY Stat § 35-2-910 "Each licensee [hospital, health care facility and health services] shall 
implement a quality management function to evaluate and improve patient and resident care and 
services in accordance with the rules and regulations promulgated by the division. Quality 
management information relating to the evaluation or improvement of the quality of health care 
services is confidential. Any person who in good faith and within the scope of the functions of a 
quality management program participates in the reporting, collection, evaluation, or use of quality 
management information or performs other functions as part of a quality management program with 
regards to a specific circumstance shall be immune from suit in any civil action based on such 
functions brought by a health care provider or person to whom the quality information pertains. In no 
event shall this immunity apply to any negligent or intentional act or omission in the provision of care" 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 7

24/226



COPY

(Justia US Law, 2019). 

B. Confidentiality shall be maintained, based on full respect of the patient's right to privacy and in 
keeping with hospital policy and state and federal regulations governing the confidentiality of quality 
and patient safety work. All quality and patient safety data and information shall be considered the 
property of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. 

Approval: UM Committee, 7/29/2020; Quality Committee 8/19/

2020; MEC 7/28/2020; Board of Trustees 

REFERENCES 

Date of Origin: 2008 

Attachments 

HINN-1 - Preadmission or Admission Hospital -Issued Notice of Noncoverage (HINN) 6.20.docx 
MHSC CM Physician Escalation Process.pdf 
MHSC Utilization Management Process Flow 6.20.pdf 

American Health Information Management Association [AHIMA]. (2019). Clinical documentation improvement. 
Retrieved from http://www.ahima.org/topics/cdi 

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services [CMS]. (2018, October 12 [revised]; 2015, March 27). §482.30 
Condition of participation: Utilization review. State operations manual: Appendix A- survey protocol, regulations 
and interpretive guidelines for hospitals. Retrieved from https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance/
Guidance/Manuals/downloads/som107ap_a_hospitals.pdf 

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services [CMS]. (2017). Medicare fee for service recovery audit program. 
Retrieved from https://www.cms.gov/Research-Statistics-Data-and-Systems/Monitoring-Programs/Medicare-
FFS-Compliance-Programs/Recovery-Audit-Program/index.html 

Federal Register. (Up to date as of 8/18/2020). Title 42 Part 482 - Conditions of Participation for Hospitals: 
§482.30 Utilization Review, pp. 35 - 37. Retrieved 8/20/2020 from https://ecfr.federalregister.gov/current/
title-42/chapter-IV/subchapter-G/part-482 

Justia US Law. (2019). WY Stat § 35-2-910. Quality management functions for health care facilities; 
confidentiality; immunity; whistle blowing; peer review. Retrieved from https://law.justia.com/codes/wyoming/
2017/title-35/chapter-2/article-9/section-35-2-910/ 

KEPRO. (2017). KEPRO service areas. Retrieved from https://www.keproqio.com/ 

Mountain Pacific Quality Health. (2018). Mountain pacific quality health quality improvement organization.
Retrieved from http://mpqhf.com/QIO/ 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 7

25/226



COPY

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer pending 

Irene Richardson: CEO 08/2020 

Tami Love: CFO 07/2020 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical Officer 07/2020 

Kristy Nielson: Chief Nursing Officer 07/2020 

Utilization Management Plan. Retrieved 08/20/2020. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

8266872/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 7 of 7

26/226



Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) 

FY 2021 Priorities 

 

The PIPS Committee thoroughly evaluated priorities for improvement for the current fiscal 

year. To assist and guide in the setting of priorities, the PIPS Committee utilized the 

prioritization matrix (found within appendices on PIPS Plan), evaluated trends in our data, 

determined if each topic was in support of MHSC’s Strategic Plan, and evaluated if the topic was 

a CMS and/or Joint Commission Standard. The following three distinct improvement projects 

were identified by the PIPS Committee, and approved by the Quality Committee of the Board 

and MEC as priorities for FY 2021.  

1. HCAHPS (Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems) 

2. Culture of Safety Survey Action Plans  

3. High Level Disinfection and Sterilization  

The methods and strategies for improvement, along with the measurement and setting of 

goals, are in development.  Previous areas of focus such as Sepsis, OP 10 – Abdomen CT with 

and without contrast, and Patient Flow will continue to be worked on through committees and 

project teams. As the year progresses, the organization may identify additional/other priorities, or 

identify concerning data trends. Should the need arise, the PIPS Committee will utilize the tools 

described above as needed for the purpose of adjusting the priorities selected for FY 2021.  

 

 

27/226



Project:  
Project No:  1753

Project Phase:  CARES Act (Covid-19) Lab Renovation & Addition
Documents Dated:  08/26/20

Pricing
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Cost

Division 1 - General Conditions
1                  ls 3,000$          3,000$                  
1                  ls 3,000$          3,000$                  

12                mo 5,000$          60,000$                
12                mo 3,000$          36,000$                
12                mo 1,000$          12,000$                
12                mo 3,500$          42,000$                

3,022,875    % 0.080 241,830$              
3,022,875    % 0.020 60,458$                

458,287.50$         

825              sf 295$             243,375$              

 - Renovate walls and ceilings for pressurized hvac systems and clean room systems

243,375$              

1,200           sf 185$             222,000$              

222,000$              

4,500           sf 495$             2,227,500$           
 - New Construction, inlcuding utilities, mechnical, electrical, and technology

2,227,500$           

CONCEPTUAL COST ESTIMATE - LAB RENOVATION & ADDITION

 - Update HVAC for isolated sanitary

Mobilization

Subtotal General Conditions

 - Additional Pneumatic Tubing 

   - New Resilient Wall Finish
   - New Resilient Floor Coverings

 - Upgrade power/data, and lighting

Upgrade Finishes in Existing Patient Areas

-  Renovated Pneumatic Tubing System

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL SWEETWATER COUNTY

Dust and Infection Control

Subtotal Heavy Renovation

 - Secure clean room for case identification upon arrival

 - Negative Pressure Testing Rooms
 - Lab Administration Specialists

Subtotal Lab Addition

Subtotal Light Renovation

Demobilization

Reconfigure Space to Include:

 - New Resilient Wall Finish

 - New Ceiling Finishes

Supervision
General Conditions
Waste Disposal Services

 - Dedicated patient room

Proposed Lab Addition
Increased Area for Upgraded Lab Equipment & Services

 - New Resilient Floor Coverings & Floor Repairs

Overhead and Profit

Heavy Renovation

 - Dedicated signage, security, and room identification

Light Renovation

   - New Ceiling Tiles

Bonds & Insurance

28/226



Project:  
Project No:  1753

Project Phase:  CARES Act (Covid-19) Lab Renovation & Addition
Documents Dated:  08/26/20

Pricing
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Cost

CONCEPTUAL COST ESTIMATE - LAB RENOVATION & ADDITION

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL SWEETWATER COUNTY

8,250           sf 40$               330,000$              

330,000$              

Project Soft Costs
Architectural / Engineering Fees 3,022,875    % 0.115 347,631$              
Reimbursables 1                  ls 20,000$        20,000$                
Permits 1                  ls 15,000$        15,000$                
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 3,022,875    % 0.100 302,288$              
Owner Contingency 3,022,875    % 0.100 302,288$              

987,206$              

Total Project Cost  - Hard & Soft Costs Combined 4,468,368$           

Notes:

Subtotal Project Soft Costs

 - Landscape Retaining Walls & Drainage Modifications
 - Landscaping and Irrigation

Site Redevelopment
Site Redevelopment due to addition

Subtotal Site Redevelopment

 - Drive Up testing with covered canopy

29/226



30/226



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…August Quality Committee Meeting 
Date:  August 24, 2020 
 
Ms. Kara Jackson reviewed the “Prioritization Matrix Tool” to provide the Committee with some 
context as to how the PIPS Committee determined to prioritize the work going forward. The 
three topics determined to be of highest priority were: HCAHPS, Culture of Safety Action Plans, 
and HLD (High Level Disinfection) and Sterilization. The Committee voted to approve the PIPS 
plan and the associated prioritization list and to forward the Plan and the prioritization list to 
the Board for approval at its September meeting. 
 
Ms. Kari Quickenden reported that the Continual Readiness Committee has been meeting often 
to get ready for the The Joint Commission visit which should occur any time now. The 
Committee is now meeting weekly. The Hospital’s three year anniversary is August 21, 2020. 
 
MHSC case managers presented the Utilization Management Plan for approval with Ms. Robin 
Jenkins as spokesperson. This area of management at MHSC involves, among other things, level 
of care, use of resources, and medical necessity and how the Hospital performs in these 
matters.  This Plan must be approved by the Board and is scheduled to be presented at the 
September meeting. 
 
Ms. Noreen Hove gave a Power Point presentation on infection prevention. Some things were 
learned by staff over time and additional education for nurses and doctors is needed in this 
area. In 2017 MHSC had onset Clostridioides Difficile (CDI) higher than predicted resulting in a 
loss of revenue. 
 
Ms. Jackson went over the “From the Director” part of the agenda. She went over some areas 
of achievement and concern that have occurred over the past several months. 
 
A Quality presentation to the Board is scheduled for sometime in late October. No specific date 
has been established at this time. 
 
The Board will receive a report by the consultant (Ms. Mella Grainger with Healthcare 
Strategies) brought in to review the Hospital’s Quality Program. The staff is reviewing the report 
at this time. 
 
 

31/226



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   8/24/2020 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

August 19, 2020 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Irene Richardson (CEO), Leslie 

Taylor (Clinic Director), Tami Love (CFO), Marty Kelsey (Quality Board Chair), 

Richard Mathey (Board Member), Dr. Cielette Karn, Dr. Kristy Nielson (CNO), Dr. 

Melinda Poyer (CMO), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), 

 

Non-voting Members:  Noreen Hove, Cindy Nelson, Robin Jenkins, Jeanne West, 

Deb Davis-Richardson, Gabrielle Seilbach, Karali Plonsky 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members: Dr. Banu Symington,  

  

Non-voting Members: Corey Worden, Kalpana Pokhrel,  

 

Chair:   Mr. Marty Kelsey  

 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Poyer shared a story about a Covid-19 diagnosis related patient that sent a wonderful letter 

regarding their care. 

 

Approval of Agenda  

Mr. Kelsey presented the Agenda for approval. Dr. Poyer motioned for approval and Mr. 

Mathey seconded the motion. Motion was unanimously approved. 

 

Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Kelsey presented the July 15, 2020 Quality Committee Minutes for approval. Dr. Poyer 

motioned for approval and Dr. Quickenden seconded the motion. Motion was unanimously 

approved. 

 

Old Business 

PIPS update was presented by Ms. Jackson, who explained the changes in layout for ease of 

reading. She further explained that the stats help to identify areas for priority focus. Ms. Jackson 

requested approval of the chosen priorities from the Committee. Mr. Mathey motioned to 

approve and Dr. Poyer seconded. Motion approved 

 

Ms. Jackson further requested approval of the PIPS prioritization list as an attachment to the PIPS 

plan. Motion to approve by Mr. Mathey, seconded by Ms. Richardson. Motion approved. 

 

Ms. Quickenden stated Continual Survey Readiness (CSR) Committee has been meeting every 

two (2) weeks, but are moving to once a week. They are having departments present action 

items that they return to for review, plus they have been doing weekly rounding in different 

departments each time. We expect The Joint Commission (TJC) any day, our 3-year anniversary 

is August 21, 2020.  

 

New Business 

Ms. Robin Jenkins, Ms. Jeanne West and Ms. Deb Davis-Richardson as MHSC Case Managers 

presented the Utilization Management Plan for approval to the Quality Committee. Ms. Jenkins 

 

32/226



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   8/24/2020 

acted as the spokesman, explaining the process and its importance to patients and our facility. 

It’s about finding appropriate resources, giving appropriate level of care, meeting medical 

necessity and receiving reimbursement. Dr. Nielson noted that this plan was actually created a 

few years ago, but we have updated it, basically paraphrasing CMS standards. Our charter 

follows CoPs guideliines. Mr. Kelsey questioned the multiple dates of approval. Dr. Nielson 

explained that the approvals have been added to the body of the document, for ease of 

tracking, and the multiple dates indicate each time it was approved. Mr. Mathey motioned to 

approve the plan, and Dr. Karn seconded. Motion approved unanimously. Plan will be 

presented to the Board of Trustees. 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Karn gave the Medical Staff update, noting that COVID-19 consumes everything we do.  

Blood culture drawing has been problematic in the ED and we have worked to have lab staff 

available, but their time has been consumed with COVID-19 swabbing, so we continue to work 

with this issue. 

 

Informational Agenda  

Ms. Jackson requested any questions on the Informational Agenda, then presented Ms. Noreen 

Hove, Infection Preventionist for presentation of the Infection Prevention Clostridioides Difficile 

(CDI) PowerPoint presentation. Ms. Hove presented a PowerPoint on CDI which is transmitted 

through direct contact and can be fatal. PowerPoint will be attached to Quality Committee 

Packet. In 2017 they predicted we would have 1.5 hospital onset CDI, we actually had 2. We 

received a reduction in pay. It is because our numbers are so low to non-existent in other areas 

that could offset this number, that all focus is on this one point. Most if not all of the CDI tests 

should not have been sent in, since they did not meet requirements. Better education for our 

nurses and doctors will help in the decision process, but calling the Infection Preventionist can 

also be instituted on all tests. 

 

Ms. Jackson explained the new section “From the Director”.  This new section will show 

significant improvements and achievements through the Quality program. Ms. Jackson further 

explained the PIPS revamp – points she will further expand on next month. Ms. Jackson 

explained Rounds and Tracers. Rounds are walk through where floor to ceiling is inspected – 

looking at physical area, documentation, staff compliance and questions. Tracers help you 

focus in on one specific area tracing a patient’s path through the organization, with example 

questions, allowing us to prep our staff for TJC. Ms. Jackson further covered Areas of Concern to 

be Addressed.  

 

Quality Committee will be presenting to the Board in October. 

 
Meeting Adjourned   Mr. Mathey motioned to adjourn, Ms. Richardson seconded the 

motion. The meeting adjourned at  9:44 am 

 

Next Meeting    September 16, 2020 at 08:15 am via ZOOM 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

33/226



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   8/24/2020 

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

34/226



Quality Committee 

Consent Agenda Quality Summary 

August 2020 

 

Four Priority/Focus Areas (Bolded in Summary Below) 

1. ED Patient Flow 

2. HCAHPS/Patient Experience 

3. Sepsis  

4. Hand Off  

 

1) Star Rating 

a. There are seven categories within the Star Rating and they are as follows: mortality, 

readmission, safety of care, efficient use of medical imaging, timeliness of care, patient 

experience (see next bullet) and effectiveness of care. Each of these seven categories 

contain several data metrics. Data within the following categories continues to trend in 

right direction: mortality. Opportunities for improvement exist within the efficient use of 

medical imaging category. OP-10 Abdomen CT with and without Contrast – Project 

Team is working on improvements of process at this time, will continue to monitor. 

Current month’s data within the readmission category has increased, an in-depth analysis 

of the data is being conducted to ensure this will not become a trend in the wrong 

direction. An opportunity for improvement exists within the safety of care category, 

specifically for the CDI (Clostridioides difficile infection) measure.  

b. Within the Timeliness of Care category, Ed-2b: ED Median Admit Decision Time to 

ED Departure Time has seen an increase in the data this month. The project team is 

aware and is working on implementing improvements. Within the Effectiveness of Care 

category, we are seeing fluctuations with the data for Core Sep1 – Early Management 

Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock. Scorecards are sent out to physicians and nurses 

with specific opportunities for improvement and the sepsis project team met this month 

with a new goal related to improving compliance with ordering blood cultures. Core OP-

23 – Head CT/MRI Results for Stroke Pts within 45 minutes of Arrival data has 

decreased over the past few months. A team has evaluated this data and is working with 

ED physicians, Radiologists, ED Department and Medical Imaging Department to review 

current process, identify any barriers, and work on improvements.  

c. Patient Experience-HCAHPS: The “Overall Inpatient HCAHPS Dashboard” is the 

survey data that affects our Star Rating and Value Based Purchasing reimbursement 

program. This survey includes OB, ICU, and Med-Surg.  

i. Data for Overall Quality of Care by Department 

1. ED 

a. Goal 42.2%  

b. Q2 2020* - 42% 

2. ICU 

a. Goal 59%  

35/226



b. Q2 2020* – 66.7% 

3. Med/Surg 

a. Goal 60.6% 

b. Q2 2020* – 59.5% 

4. OB  

a. Goal 71.9% 

b. Q2 2020* – 65.4% 

5. Surgery:  

a. Goal 73.1%  

b. Q2 2020* 72.1% 

ii. *data not yet complete 

2) Risk/Safety 

a. Occurrence reporting is about average. The trending for medication errors have raised the 

question if we are reporting information that means anything. It is being discussed. The 

other occurrences reported did not rend into any known issues. No Falls were reported in 

Midas. There were three occurrence related issues. All issues were corrected within an 

appropriate time.  

b. Safety – An interdisciplinary team is working to create a new safety committee. 

Discussions are taking place as to what the safety committee will address in terms of data 

and subcommittees reporting into the safety committee, and a patient safety plan is also 

being written for our organization. The patient safety plan will come to Quality 

Committee of the Board for approval.  

3)  PI Standards 

a. Our PI Standards within the dashboard include data metrics defined by Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), as well as 

priorities identified by MHSC on the Performance Improvement and Patient Safety 

(PIPS) plan.  

4) Accreditation 

a. We are currently in our Joint Commission triennial survey window. Joint Commission 

has resumed surveys with some changes to the survey process due to COVID 19. Our 

CSR Committee has had several meetings and reviewed four Joint Commission Chapters. 

There are a few standards that need work to come into compliance and this work is 

underway. We will review a chapter during each meeting and beginning in September, 

we will hold weekly meetings. Tracers, rounds, and COVID 19 specific rounds are 

completed each week. “Joint Points” are shared with the hospital and clinics three times 

per week.  These include tips and reminders about Joint Commission Standards and will 

be reviewed with staff on rounds.  

 

 

 

Summary: 

36/226



 

 

 
 

 

37/226



HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD AUGUST 2020  

 Ed Tardoni 

The Human Resources Committee met in a Zoom format this month.   

HR DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual HR reports are included in the Board packet.  Your attention is directed to a new entry in the 

report.  HR staff noted that 15% of hiring consists of individuals that previously worked at MHSC.  In 

most cases it involves individuals who leave the area for other states or countries.  Then, for many 

reasons, years later they return to Sweetwater County and seek employment at MHSC.  This is 

considered to be of benefit to MHSC as they return as experienced employees with perspectives from 

outside the area. 

POLICY ACTIVITY 

The HR Committee continued activity on the following policies: 

CULTURAL DIVERSITY POLICY 

A comment concerning one word was received from a Board Member.  The committee, after consulting 

a dictionary, selected a replacement word.  This policy is very short and the committee has decided to 

move it to the action section of the Board agenda rather than leaving it under New Business.  The policy 

is ready for a vote by the Board. 

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS POLICY 

It should be noted that the wrong copy of this policy was in the August Board Packet.  That copy 

attracted a substantial amount of comments from a Board Member.  The committee considered the 

comments and other issues related to communications systems.   A committee approved copy has been 

included in the September Board Packet under New Business.  The committee recommends placement 

under New Business because of the nature and amount of changes that were made to the document. 

Social Media Policy 

This is a new policy.  The first draft was presented to the committee.  Committee members will submit 

their comments to Suzan Campbell who will compile same for consideration at the next committee 

meeting. 

ADDITONAL POLICY DISCUSSIONS 

The HR Committee wishes to continue the hold on the following until finalization of the Medical Staff 

Bylaws.  To summarize the following items are linked and language dependent on each other: 

 Termination and Appeals 

 Introductory Period 

 Corrective Action 

 Medical Staff Bylaws 

 Board Appeals Procedure 

38/226



DISCUSSION TOPICS 

The committee continued the practice of discussing two topics at each meeting.  For July the topics were 

as follows: 

Supplementing Hospital Salaries 

The committee came to the conclusion that what an employee does when off the job is their choice; as 

long as it does not interfere with performance while on duty at MHSC.  If such activity is carried out 

while on duty, then that constitutes a performance issue.  Such performance issues are already covered 

by existing policies. 

Political Activities 

Discussion entailed about what type of activities may fall under this heading.  Three central existing 

standards govern this.  Policies exist that state an employee must take care not to represent that they 

are speaking, or writing, for MHSC; unless they have been formally and specifically delegated to do so.  

Another consideration is found in the provisions of the dress code that would impact apparel of a 

political nature.  Cautions in other policies make it clear to employees that attempts to achieve 

resolution of any conflict or issue should be handled under the policies and procedures of MHSC rather 

than by venting on social media.  

NEXT MEETING 

The HR Committee meets the third Monday of the month. The next meeting will be September 21, 2020 

at 3:00 P.M most likely by Zoom 

 

 

39/226



0Human Resources Committee Meeting 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
3:00 PM – Zoom meeting  

AGENDA 
 

Old Business  
I. Approval of minutes 
II. Turnover Report - Amber 
III. Open Positions –Amy 
IV. Employee policies with updated language – Suzan 

a. Social Media 
b. Cultural Diversity 
c. Communication Systems 

V. Employee policy review/discussion - Suzan 
a. Supplementing hospital salaries 
b. Political Activities 

New Business  
VI. Voluntary Employee Benefits Review/Comparison – Allstate presented by 

National Enrollment Services – Amber and Irene 
VII. Committee member reports, other discussion(s) – as needed 
VIII. Determination of Next Meeting Date (Auto-Scheduled for 09/21/20) 

 
 

40/226



           

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting- Minutes Draft 
Monday, August 17, 2020 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Attending by Zoom: Barbara Sowada & Ed Tardoni  
Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Guests by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Ruthann Wolfe, Kristy Nielson, Kari 
Quickenden, Tami Love. 
 
Ed Tardoni called the meeting to order at 3:02 pm by asking for a motion 
to approve the agenda. Irene motioned to approve, a second was made 
by Barbara; agenda was passed. 
 
I.        MINUTES APPROVED: 
 
The minutes for the July 20, 2020 meeting were passed after a change 
should be made to the first sentence on page two – Change “Marty 
motioned” to “Ed motioned”. Minutes approved with change to first 
sentence on page 2.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
II.       Turnover Report - Amber: 

 
Amber went over the turnover report which showed that the overall 
turnover had decreased to18% from the usual 20%. Amber also discussed 
that the re-hire rate is high at 16%.    
 
III.         Open Positions - Amy: 

 
This agenda item was passed over erroneously and never discussed.  
 
IV.        Other Employee policies requiring new language - Suzan: 

a. Social Media Policy 
Suzan discussed making changes to this policy by adding to the current 
one. The changes stemmed from a conversation between Suzan and 
Amber from an HR perspective, specifically to help navigate employee 
corrective action and counseling. Suzan wanted to capture the broader 
scope of social media. Irene asked if this policy addresses employee 
performance in regards to utilizing phone or other personal devices during 
work hours to post and/or view social media sites. Suzan and Amber 
explained that both this policy and other employee policies address the 
use of phones on work time. Barbara brought up the use and attachment 

41/226



           

to personal phones by many people in this day and age. Suzan will make 
changes and resend for further comment. No changes at this time.  

a) Cultural Diversity 
Previous Board/Committee member, Marty Kelsey had suggested a 
change to the language within the first paragraph. Instead of it reading 
“irrespective of” the change would be to have it read to say “regardless 
of”. Barbara motioned for the change to be made, Amber seconded. 
Motion passed. Suzan will make the change and send to Cindy for 
inclusion in the board packet with a due pass recommendation.  
Ed noted that Suzan will send the policies out when finished and ask that 
any revisions, comments and suggestions are returned to Suzan prior to 
the next meeting on September 14th, 2020. 

a) Communication Systems 
Ed discussed the process to go through suggested changes one by one 
for approvals.  

Purpose: 
May or shall regarding corrective action. Amber suggested the 

language should read “may” instead of “shall”. Motioned, seconded. 
Passed to make change.  

Section III: 
Delete entirely. Motioned, seconded and passed to make deletion.  

This policy as modified by the committee will be sent to the board with a 
due pass recommendation.  
  
Amber added two policies to the agenda to invoke discussion if needed.  

a) Supplementing hospital salaries: 
 Ed asked if issues were ever brought to the attention of senior 
leadership and/or Human Resources regarding this. Members and guests 
discussed that a policy is not necessarily needed as a policy exists about 
additional positions or second jobs outside of the hospital if they interfere 
with their primary hospital jobs.  

a) Political Activities: 
Ed asked Amber to speak a little bit about this. Amber mentioned that 
there are mentions of political activities in other employee policies. Amber 
talked about an incident at the hospital where a department that made 
t0-shirts with sensitive “slogans” written on them stemming from a racially 
charged incident that happened in the nation. Amber explained that an 
employee was offended by the t-shirts, and that she asked the employee 
to remove the shirts and all was fine at that point. Suzan said that she 
would draft something in policy and bring back to the committee at a 
future date.  
 
 
 

42/226



           

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
I. Voluntary benefit proposals with Allstate: 

a. This will be reviewed by members to invoke thought and 
further discussion at a future committee meeting. Irene talked 
about the vendor bringing a proposal to help employees with 
a tax credit during the pandemic. Discussions halted pending 
member review of the proposals and inclusion of tax credit 
information sent by Amber.  

 
II           Next Meeting  
 
Next meeting will be held on 9/14/2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
-Meeting adjourned.  

43/226



2020 Separations - Clinic

Separations
New 

Employees
Total 

Employees 110
January 0 0 110

February 1 1 110
March 2 2 110

April 1 0 109
May 1 0 108
June 0 0 108
July 1 1 108

August
September

October
November
December

Total

Separations Overall Turnover
Involuntary 4 2014 20 26%

Voluntary 2 2015 11 18%
Total 6 2016 16 14%

2017 26 23%
2018 13 12%

Classifications 2019 6 5%
RN 1

Classified 5
Total 5

Rolling 12 Months 
Jan 19 - Jan 20 7 6%
Feb 19 - Feb 20 8 7%
March 19- March 20 10 9%
April 19 - April 20 6 6%
May 19 - May 20 10 9%
June 19 - June 20 9 8%
July 19 - July 20 10 9%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Jan 19 - Jan 20 Feb 19 - Feb 20 March 19- March
20

April 19 - April
20

May 19 - May 20

Rolling 12 months

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

0
5

10
15
20
25
30

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Overall Turnover

44/226



Top  Position(s) /  Turnover 2020 %
Clinic Collections Clerk/Recep 5 4%
Registered Nurse 1 5%

Top Reason(s) / Turnover 2020 %
Resignation 2 33%
Discharged 4 67%

Length of Service 2020 %
Less than 90 days 2 33%
91 - 365 days 1 17%
1-2 Yrs. 1 17%
3-5 Yrs. 2 33%
6-10 Yrs.
11-20 Yrs.
21-30 Yrs.
Total 6

Counseling
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written Warning 1% 100%
Disciplinary Suspension

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY - CLINIC DATA
2020 Clinic Turnover Data (as of 07/31/2020)

Corrective Action

0%

500%

Less
than 90

days

91 -
365
days

1-2 Yrs. 3-5 Yrs. 6-10
Yrs.

11-20
Yrs.

21-30
Yrs.

0%

100%

Discharged

0%

50%

100%

150%

Counseling Verbal
Warning

Written
Warning

Final Written
Warning

Disciplinary
Suspension

Clinic Collections
Clerk/Recep

Registered Nurse

45/226



Total Employees

536

536

Separations
New 

Employees 536
January 4 4 533

February 9 6 530
March 9 8 529

April 1 4 532
May 7 1 526
June 7 3 522
July 3 8 527

August
September

October
November
December

Total 40 34 8%

Overall Turnover
2009 96

Separations 2010 98
Involuntary 15 2011 79

Voluntary 25 2012 104
Total 40 2013 113

2014 88
2015 97
2016 86

Classifications 2017 116
RN 4 2018 96

Classified 36 2019 93
Total 40 2020 13

Rolling 12 Separations %
Jan 19 - Jan 20 109 20%
Feb 19 - Feb 20 107 20%
March 19 - March 20 107 20%
April 19 - April 20 103 19%
May 19 - May 20 105 20%
June 19 - June 20 105 20%
July 19 - July 20 94 18%

Rehire Rate Rehires %

July 19 - July 20 14 15%

2020 Separations - Hospital Wide

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

0

50

100

150

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Overall Turnover 2009 - 2020

Series1

46/226



Top Position(s) /  Turnover 2020 %
Clinic Collections Clerk/Recp. 5 4%
EVS TECH 4 16%
Registered Nurse 4 3%

Top Department(s) / Turnover 2020 %
Clinic 6 15%
EVS 5 13%
Nutrition Services 4 10%

Top Reasons / Turnover 2020 %
Other Employment 4 10%
Discharged 15 38%
Moving Out of Area/Relocation 4 10%
Resigned 9 23%
Retired 2 5%

Length of Service 2020 %
Less than 90 days 7 18%
91 - 365 days 12 30%
1-2 Yrs. 7 18%
3-5 Yrs. 7 18%
6-10 Yrs. 3
11-20 Yrs.
21-41Yrs. 4 10%
Total 40

Corrective Action % Discharged
Counseling
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written Warning 23% 100%
Administrative Leave

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
2020 Overall  Turnover Data (As of 07/31/2020)

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%

0
5

10
15

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%

Cl
in

ic

EV
S

N
ut

rit
io

n
Se

rv
ic

es

0

20

Clinic Collections
Clerk/Recp.

EVS TECH

Registered Nurse

47/226



EMPLOYEE POLICY--SOCIAL MEDIA AND BEHAVIOR POLICY 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to establish clear expectations for the use of online networking or “social 
media” and staff behavior at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (Hospital) in the social media 
environment.  All of the people served and employed by Hospital deserve to be treated with dignity and 
respect.  This Policy is meant to ensure that these values will be upheld through Employees’ professional 
and personal use of social media.  

This policy establishes fundamental rules of appropriate business decorum that apply to all social media 
use at Hospital, by its Employees whether this is done as part of work or for personal reasons. However, 
when an Employee uses social media as part of his/her work for Hospital, more stringent rules apply 
(see Policy).   Ultimately, each Employee is solely responsible for what he/she posts online and will be 
subject to corrective action for violations of this or related Employee Policies.   

DEFINITIONS  

“Material” means any words, comments, photographs, video, audio or other content, images or sound 
that is posted, published or transferred to any Social Media.  

“Social Media” means the use of web-based or other electronic technology for the purpose of 
interacting and communication with people, companies and communities through the use of an 
electronic identity.  Examples of social media include but are not limited to:  
Social network sites such as Facebook, Linkedin 
Video, photo and audio sharing sites such as YouTube, TikTok 
Blogs and blogging tools  
Micro blogging tools such as Twitter  
Collaborative forums (open or closed)  
Interactive encyclopedias  
Comment-enables online tools  
Personal web mail accounts such as Yahoo or gmail 
Any other web sites or electronic media that allow individual users or companies to publish or post 
material 
 
“Staff” or “Employee” means any person who works for or represents MHSC. This includes, but is not 
limited to employees, medical staff, residents, students, volunteers,  contractors, consultants and board 
members.    

POLICY  

In general, Hospital does not prohibit the use of Social Media at work and as part of work.  In fact, there 
may be times when some Employees will be encouraged to use Social Media as part of their jobs.  But, in 
order to protect the privacy of Employees, patients and visitors; to preserve the reputation of MHSC and 
to promote a respectful and productive work environment there are important rules that must be 
followed when using Social Media. 

 

48/226



A.  Social Media in General   

• Protect Patient  Privacy.  All uses and disclosures of protected heath information (PHI) shall be 
carried out in a manner compliant with applicable patient privacy laws, polices, regulations, and 
standards.  In accordance with federal and state laws regarding patient privacy, Employees are 
prohibited from posting any content that is considered PHI, including patient names, images, 
and diagnoses, without a written authorization for the use and disclosure of the information 
from the patient/patients legal representative.   Note that information about a patient may be 
individually identifiable, even if the Employee does not refer to the patient by name.   

• Keep Confidential Information Confidential.  Employees must not post or disclose any 
confidential or protected information obtained from the records of the Hospital that is not 
necessary for the Employee to perform his/her duties. Employees must not post internal 
reports, policies, complaints, grievances, or other internal business-related confidential 
communications. 

• Respect Employers’ Property Rights. Employees must maintain the confidentiality and integrity 
of the Hospital’s reputations and legal rights.  To that end, Employees must not use any logos, 
signage or trademarks of MHSC that infringe on the intellectual property interests of MHSC, 
unless Hospital has specifically authorized that use.   

• Be Safe and Respectful.  Hospital encourages Employees to be fair and courteous with their on-
line posts and comments. Employees may be more likely to resolve work-related concerns by 
speaking directly with their leaders and/or co-workers, rather than posting complaints to a 
social media outlet. Nevertheless, Employees who decide to post complaints, criticism, or 
negative commentary about Hospital or its services via social media must avoid using 
statements, photographs, video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as unlawful, obscene, 
profane, malicious, abusive, coercive, threatening, offensive, intimidating, bullying, harassing, 
sexist, racist or discriminatory. Some examples of such conduct might include false and 
malicious posts meant to intentionally harm someone’s’ reputation or offensive posts that could 
contribute to a hospital work environment on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion or any 
other status protected by law or  Hospital  policies.   

Employees must also avoid posting content that could compromise the safety and security of 
Hospital premises or systems or those who have access to them.   

• Be Honest and Accurate. Never post information or rumors that are known or should be known  
to be false about MHSC, its employees, contractors, patients or persons working on behalf of 
Hospital.   

• Do Not Represent Yourself as Hospital’s Spokesperson. Employees must not claim or imply, in 
any way, that they speak for MHSC unless they have been expressly authorized by the CEO to do 
so.  Employees shall not speak to the media on the Hospital’s behalf without first contacting the 
Hospitals Public Relations Department. 
The forgoing rules apply regardless of when or where the Employee is using social media, and 
regardless of whether the internet connection, computer or other device (such as a smart 
phone) that the Employee is using is provided by the Hospital or is the Employees.  

 

49/226



B.  Using Social Media for Personal Purposes  

Hospital recognizes that many of its Employees will choose to use social media for personal reasons.  

If using Social Media while at work, on work time or using a device or system that belongs to MHSC, 
employees must: 

• Limit their use to occasional and incidental personal use  
• Make sure that their use does not interfere with the Hospitals business and patient activities 

and responsibilities or the Employees job performance or productivity 
• Not perform outside employment, operate or promote the Employees own business or purpose 

or promote similar persona commercial ventures. Not engage in gaming. Not post or respond to 
personal ads.  

• Make sure that the Employee’s use does not violate the Hospital’s Code of Conduct, this policy 
or any other Hospital policy.  

• The computers, email system, internet connection and other technological devices and systems 
are the property of the Hospital and intended for work purposes.  Accordingly, if Employees use 
social media while using Hospital internet or while using a device or system that belongs to 
MHSC, Employees must comply with the Hospitals policies regarding Communication Systems, 
Computer Use or other applicable hospital policies.  

• Employees who implicitly or explicitly refer to MHSC in their Social Media posts must disclose 
that they are employed by MHSC and should also include a disclaimer that their comments and 
opinions are their own and not those of MHSC or its employees. 

MHSC reserves the right to monitor and review Employee’s use of Social Media on any Hospital owned 
or issued device or system. MHSC reserves the right to access publically available internet content as 
permitted by law.  In the event MHSC identifies any Material posted by an Employee or by an Employee 
at the request of another person that it deems inappropriate under this Policy, Hospital may demand 
the removal of such content. 

Failure to comply with this Policy may result in Corrective Action, up to and including termination.  
Failure to comply may also result in the removal of internet or email privileges at work.   

50/226



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 8327785 

Approved: N/A 
Review Due: N/A 
Document Area: Employee Policies 
Reg. Standards: 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION 
SYSTEMS 

PURPOSE 

POLICY 
I. The Hospital’s network, access to Internet, e-mail and voice mail systems are business tools intended for 

employees and Other Users to use in performing their job duties.   All information regarding access to 
the Hospital’s computer resources, such as user identifications, access codes, and passwords are 
confidential Hospital information and may not be disclosed to non-MHSC personnel. 
Computer equipment should not be removed from the Hospital premises without written approval from IT 
and/or employee’s supervisor.  Upon separation of employment, all Hospital issued computers or cell 
phones shall  be returned to the Hospital’s IT or HR department. 

II. The electronic communication systems such as computers, phone system, etc. are the property of MHSC 
and are intended for Hospital business use. All computer files, documents, and software created or stored 
on MHSC’s computer systems are subject to review and inspection at any time as all electronic 
documents and files are the property of MHSC. This includes web-based email employees and Other 

Users may access through MHSC systems, whether password protected or not.   Employees and Other 

Users should not assume that any such information is confidential, including e-mail either sent or 
received. Employees and Other Users should not have an expectation of privacy as MHSC owns all 
the information sent or received within the Hospital's network and has the right to search the information 
without employee knowledge or consent. 

III. (Users of MHSC's internal email system should never assume emails sent or received through the 
Hospital system network are in any way private and /or confidential). Delete this sentence  I think it is 

stated above 

IV. Unauthorized Use 

Employees may not attempt to gain access to another employee’s personal file of e-mail messages or 
send a message under someone else’s name without the latter’s express permission.  Employees are 

To inform MHSC employees and Other Users (students, contractors, contract employees and non-employed 
providers) of MHSC communication systems of the expectations and responsibilities of using Hospital 
communication systems.  MHSC employees and Other Users should have no expectation of a right to privacy 
on MHSC computers, phones, voice mail or other MHSC communication systems. Employee violation of this 

Policy may or shall ?  result in corrective action. 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS. Retrieved 08/11/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8327785/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 2

51/226

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

strictly prohibited from using the Hospital’s communication systems in ways that management deems to 
be inappropriate.  If an employee has questions as to whether their behavior would constitute 
unauthorized use, contact your immediate supervisor before engaging in such conduct. 

V. Telephones/Cell Phones/Mobile Devices 

Employee work hours are valuable and are to be used for Hospital business.  Excessive personal phone 
calls can significantly disrupt hospital  operations.  Employees should use their break or lunch period for 
personal phone calls. 

VI. Confidential information should not be discussed on a cell phone or via any mobile device.  Phones and 
mobile devices with cameras should not be used in a way that violates other MHSC guidelines such as, 
but not limited to, Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment, Confidentiality and HIPAA Policies. 
  Employees’ or other Users  access to the Hospital systems through a cell phone or mobile device is 
restricted/prohibited without prior authorization.  (Such access, once authorized, may subject the 
employee’s personal device to discovery requests or MHSC corrective action.)   Marty suggested a re-

write of this sentence but I think this sentence should be deleted.  Employees authorized to access 
MHSC systems and information using a cell phone or personal device must immediately inform the 
Hospital if the device is lost or stolen. 
Employees are prohibited from using a cell phone while operating a motor vehicle unless the phone is 
operated through a hands free system. Texting is permitted only when the vehicle is at rest and lawfully 
parked. 

VII. New employees are required to read and sign the Computer Account User Access Agreement. 

Approved: computer usage policy 6.6.18 revised presented to Bd 

of Trustees 8.5.20 

Attachments 

No Attachments 

Link to Form #802563 Computer Account User Access Agreement

 https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4985147/latest/ 

EMPLOYEE POLICIES- COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS. Retrieved 08/11/2020. Official copy at
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/8327785/. Copyright © 2020 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 2

52/226



53/226



54/226



55/226



56/226



57/226



58/226



59/226



60/226



61/226



62/226



63/226



64/226



65/226



66/226



67/226



68/226



69/226



70/226



71/226



72/226



73/226



74/226



75/226



76/226



77/226



78/226



79/226



80/226



81/226



82/226



83/226



84/226



85/226



86/226



87/226



88/226



89/226



90/226



91/226



92/226



93/226



94/226



95/226



96/226



97/226



98/226



99/226



100/226



101/226



102/226



103/226



104/226



105/226



106/226



107/226



108/226



109/226



110/226



111/226



112/226



113/226



 

 MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

August 26, 2020 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Richard Mathey, Trustee – Chair 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Voting Members Absent:  None 

 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services  

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO 

Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen 

 

Non-Voting Members Absent : Dr. Augusto Jamias 

 

 

 

Guests:    Tracie Soller, Director of Medical Imaging 

     Crystal Hamblin, Director of Cardiopulmonary 

     Alisha Mackie, Director of Surgical Services 

     Dr. Cody Christensen 

     Megan Gilbert, Nursing Informatics 

     Bethany Bettolo, Nursing Informatics 

     Brooke Fandrich, Nursing Informatics 

     Jodi Corley, Nursing Informatics 

     Stacey Nutt, Network Administrator  

     Nicole Manus, PACS Administrator    

     Gerry Johnston, Maintenance Supervisor 

     Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director    

      

      

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order via teleconference.  
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of June 24, 2020 as presented was made by Ms. Love; 

second by Ms. Richardson. Motion carried.  Mr. Tardoni abstained from voting because he was 

not a member of the Finance & Audit Committee in June. 
 

Capital Requests 
 

Ms. Love gave a presentation on a new Electronic Medical Record.  She explained the 

advantages of upgrading to a new medical record and the challenges we currently face with the 

114/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 26, 2020 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

many systems we currently use.  She presented the financial impact and the annual savings in 

service costs.  The program that was chosen is Cerner CommunityWorks.  The motion to 

approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. 

Richardson.  Motion carried. 

 

Dr. Christensen presented FY21-2 for the Lumenis Laser.  He explained that this is a laser used 

for kidney stones.  Our current laser is about 4-5 years.  This new laser would be faster, safer and 

allow for more complex procedures.  It would allow more procedures to stay in our hospital 

rather than transferring them to another location.  It is top of the line technology and would help 

with recruiting another urologist.  Ms. Mackie said they would be able to add more patients to 

their caseload with this faster laser.  Mr. Tardoni asked if it would also be used for BPH.  Dr. 

Christensen said that he would also use it for BPH and not have to transfer those patients.  The 

motion to approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Ms. Richardson; second 

by Mr. Tardoni.  Motion carried. 

  

Ms. Hamblin presented FY21-3 for the Natus EEG Machine.  She is explained this machine is 

needed for our new neurologist, Dr. Prachi Pawar, starting in October.  This machine looks at 

brain waves.  She explained the procedure will be performed in Respiratory and then read by Dr. 

Pawar.  This particular machine was requested by Dr. Pawar because she has had experience 

with using it.  The motion to approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Ms. 

Richardson; second by Mr. Tardoni.  Motion carried. 

 

Gerry Johnston presented FY 21-4 for the Heat Exchanger.  Gerry said that this will replace our 

180-degree hot water heat exchanger.  This is a sole source purchase to keep uniformity with the 

current equipment.  The motion to approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by 

Mr. Tardoni; second by Ms. Richardson.  Motion carried. 

 

Nicole Manus presented FY 21-10 for the PACS System Upgrade.  Ms. Manus explained PACS 

stores all medical imaging.  We are unable to buy more storage and need to upgrade the system.  

The current system uses adobe flash and will no longer be supported by the end of 2020.  

Additional storage will also be needed with the addition of the new 3D Mammography Machine.  

Mr. Tardoni asked if this is stored on or off-site.  Ms. Manus said PACS is stored on-site in the 

server room.  He asked if this would add to the heat issues in the storage room.  Ms. Nutt said 

this should not impact the server room as it will replace current equipment.  The motion to 

approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Ms. Richardson; second by Mr. 

Tardoni.  Motion carried. 

 

Ms. Mackie presented FY21-14 for the CO2 Conditioning Insufflator Kits.  She explained this 

equipment will filter the smoke created during surgery while using a cautery.  The smoke can put 

bacteria into the air if is not filtered.  This would help with COVID safety for the OR teams.  

Currently, the smoke is released into the air and stays there until a port is opened in the room.  

Ms. Love said this item was requested as a SLIB grant, but was denied.  She thinks they did not 

understand what it was.  She added we can use our CARES funds for this purchase.  The motion 

to approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Ms. Richardson; second by Mr. 

Tardoni.  Motion carried. 

 

 

 

115/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 26, 2020 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed highlights of the July financial statements.  She said we closed with a 

$846,174 net gain.  Gross revenue was $16.6 million which was $2.6 million over budget.  She 

said we did not see the decreased volumes we expected when budgeting due to COVID.  We did 

not use any CARES funds for July for lost revenue.  We are looking at a different method for 

using the lost revenue for future months.   She also reported that the clinic had a record high 

month in revenue for July.  Reduction of revenue was booked at 51.2% for July, under budget by 

1.7% 

 

Ms. Love said August revenue is projecting to come in at $14.3 million.  We are projecting to a 

loss around $200k-$300k. 

 

Mr. Tardoni asked if we thought the increase in the clinic was due to catching up from those that 

delayed appointments due to COVID.  Ms. Taylor said they are probably seeing some catch-up.  

She also thinks the addition of the walk-in clinic has helped the numbers.  Word is getting 

around and the walk-in clinic is busy.  She also thinks providers didn’t take as much time off this 

summer because of the pandemic.  She also said we have added tele-health for those patients that 

do not want to come into the clinic.  At this point, they are not able to take vitals on tele-health.   

 

Mr. Cheese presented the preliminary bad debt to the committee.  He said as of now the bad debt 

is $1,099,457.95.  He said this number will change before the board meeting next week.  The 

motion to approve the preliminary bad debt was made by Ms. Richardson; second by Mr. 

Tardoni.  Motion carried. 

 

Old Business 

 

Ms. Love said the FY20 Audit is not finalized.  We are waiting on some items from external 

sources.  The QRA is not available until September.  The auditors are still planning to call in for 

the September Finance Meeting and the October Board Meeting to present the audit.   

 

Ms. Love said she is struggling to get confirmation from the University of Utah that the helipad 

is covered under the U of U policy.  She said they are still working on this. 

 

Ms. Love gave an update on the SLIB grants.  She said we have put a down payment down on 

the mobile lab and have submitted a request for reimbursement.  She said the state is working on 

alternative options to get the money distributed faster.  The current process is taking too long and 

the money needs to be spent by the 12/15/20 deadline.  Ms. Love thought there was around $100 

million left to allocate to healthcare.  There is hope that the deadline might get extended as the 

other CARES funds must be spent by 7/31/2021.   

 

Ms. Love said we are moving forward with the cyber penetration testing.  This was postponed 

due to COVID.  Phase 1 is scheduled for 9/14/20 and Phase 2 9/28/20. Both phases will be 

performed remotely.   

 

 

116/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 26, 2020 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 4 

New Business 

 

Ms. Richardson explained we have around $7 million left in CARES funds to spend by 7/31/21.  

She presented a proposal to remodel and extend the lab.  We currently have outpatient lab 

services moved over to the Foundation building due to COVID.  The outside entrance has been a 

patient satisfier. We would like to add something similar off the lab and give the Foundation 

their space back.  The current lab does not allow for social distancing.  We have worked with an 

architect firm for a proposal and they have pared it down to around $4.5 million.  This would 

allow for reserves for lost revenue for the unknown of how COVID could change and the 

possibility of elective surgeries getting cancelled again.  Mr. Mathey agreed with this plan and 

said that time is of the essence.  Mr. Tardoni also agreed to move this forward to the board.   

 

Mr. Mathey asked about enterprise revenue and where the numbers come from.  Ms. Love 

explained that the numbers come from a system report.  It is the hospital revenue generated from 

labs, scans, etc. that are ordered by physicians.  They are tracked in the system by the provider 

ordering the test.  Mr. Tardoni is concerned that reporting this gives the wrong expectations to 

the physicians.  We do not want them to feel influenced or pressured by these numbers.  Their 

expectation should always be to do what is best for the patient.  Ms. Taylor said the patient has 

the option to decide where they want to go for services whether they are referred to the hospital 

or not.  Mr. Mathey said we will continue this discussion in the next meeting.   

 

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

 

Ms. Love asked the committee if there is anything in the packet they would like to change.  She 

asked if they still wanted the clinic financials broken out since they are not all inclusive.  The 

clinic financials are not allocated overhead costs.  Mr. Tardoni thought we have a good 

accounting package.  He has looked at other hospital packets and ours looks good.  He said that 

he is okay with leaving the clinic in the packet, but he does fear that people will not realize they 

are not allocated all overhead costs.   

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:00 PM. 

 
 

Submitted by Jan Layne 

117/226



118/226



119/226



120/226



121/226



122/226



123/226



124/226



125/226



126/226



127/226



128/226



129/226



130/226



131/226



132/226



133/226



134/226



135/226



136/226



137/226



138/226



139/226



140/226



141/226



142/226



143/226



144/226



145/226



146/226



147/226



148/226



149/226



150/226



151/226



152/226



153/226



154/226



155/226



156/226



157/226



158/226



159/226



160/226



161/226



162/226



163/226



164/226



165/226



166/226



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Date:  August 24, 2020 
Subject: Chair’s Report…August Buildings and Grounds Committee Meeting 
 
At the August Building and Grounds Committee meeting, Jim Horan reviewed the current 
maintenance metrics. Nothing to note by way of issues. 
 
Regarding the Central Plant project, the project is lagging behind schedule expectations. There 
is no liquidated damages provision in the contract for failing to meet the contract completion 
deadline, so the Hospital has little leverage. Jake wishes now he would have included this in the 
contract. At the last meeting, it was reported that the project would be completed by mid-
September. Now, it looks like substantial completion will miss that timeline but hopefully will 
be completed by early October. This is unfortunate as it is best to test the chillers out in warm 
weather. Jake will be providing a schedule update in the next several days. 
 
Regarding the SLIB work, the CMAR proposals are due back to ST & B by August 31st. Jake will 
recommend a CMAR General Contractor to the Hospital’s CEO ASAP after then. ST & B has been 
working hard on other plans & specifications packages which need to be prepared. The UV 
piece of the project will be under the CMAR. Irene reported that there is no further word from 
SLIB on the expenses vs. encumbered issue. 
 
The pharmacy project, approved several months ago, has been on hold due to COVID-19 but 
will be restarted within the next month. 
 
Regarding the Grounds Lean-to structure, some concrete still needs to be poured. This work 
should be completed shortly. 
 
There is a long-standing issue regarding the Chemo Mixing Room in the Oncology Department 
which needs to be addressed. It has to do with negative and positive air flow and air exhaust 
matters. Jim has been discussing the matter with Jake. More information will be provided at a 
later date. 
 
Discussions are continuing regarding bulk oxygen. The Hospital’s multi-year contract with Air 
Gas, and The Joint Commission’s concerns regarding bulk oxygen were discussed. 
 The Board will be updated in the future regarding this matter. 
 
Jim Horan may be submitting a request for replacement roofing over the Power House 
sometime in the late winter or spring. 
 

167/226



Irene reported that the Hospital has roughly $9,000,000 in CARES funds that need to be spent. 
She is unsure at this time how much of this money will be needed to support the Hospital’s 
finances. It appears, however, that not all of these funds will be needed for this purpose and it 
may well be prudent for the Hospital to consider committing some CARES funds for additional 
capital projects. Any unused CARES funds need to be returned by July 31, 2021. 

168/226



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

August 18, 2020 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on August 18, 2020, at 

3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Dr. Barbara Sowada, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

 
    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Dr. Sowada made a motion to approve the minutes from the July 22, 2020 meeting, Mr. Horan 

seconded; motion passed. 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan presented the maintenance metrics.  Total work orders and open work orders are both 

down as Mr. Johnston has been diligently cleaning up older work orders. Overtime will be up 

slightly due to additional shutdowns pertaining to the Central Plant project and they expect to be 

on budget for the month.  Mr. Blevins brought up his concerns over allowable shutdowns per the 

contract.  He asked we track the shutdowns as there is the possibility of liquidated damages for 

more or longer shutdowns allowed in the contract.  

 
 

Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

Mr. Blevins gave an update on the progress of the project.  The old towers are out and they had 

started opening the room and doing some under slab work.  Mr. Johnston added the paving is 

complete, doors and framing are being done, the last cooling tower is in the building and the new 

chiller is in place.  They are currently working on the piping.  Mr. Blevins said he had expected to 

be testing the new chillers by now but because they are behind schedule.  We won’t be able to test 

under peak summer conditions but not concerned.  Mr. Johnston estimates substantial completion 

mid to late September.  Mr. Kelsey asked Mr. Blevins to send a memo with status updates in the 

next few weeks so we don’t have to wait until the next scheduled meeting for updates. 

 

Projects for SLIB Funding 

Mr. Blevins said the Air Handler Procurement package and the CMAR went out earlier this week.  

They are hoping to roll the other 3-4 bid packages to the general contractor.  Mr. Blevins will send 

a copy of the CMAR to hospital staff.  He explained the delay to getting it released was due to the 

169/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 18, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

timing requirement of legal advertisements.  The CMAR proposals will be due August 31st and 

authority was given to Hospital administration to make the final choice.  Mr. Kelsey asked what 

the sense is for interest in the project.  Mr. Blevins said he did reach out to some contractors to let 

them know the project is out there.  Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Richardson if there has been any 

conversation regarding changing the “expensed vs. encumbered” requirements of SLIB.  She 

responded there has not been any updates on changing the requirement.  Ms. Richardson said we 

packaged the projects as HVAC as one and the UV lights as one.  Mr. Blevins said they will be 

packaged under the General Contractor as that would align with the Board vote last week.  They 

would be included in the CMAR.  The lead time is 6 - 8 weeks on the lights so he is not worried 

as much as the other schedules.  He will run some more budget exercises to make sure we don’t 

leave any of the approved SLIB funds on the table. Mr. Kelsey asked about the level of confidence 

in using CARES Act funds for construction projects related to COVID-19.  Ms. Richardson said 

we are working with our auditors, CLA, to help decipher the HHS requirements.  Mr. Kelsey said 

we should get legal advice to weigh in on this decision. 

 

Chemo Mixing Room 

Mr. Blevins, Mr. Horan and Mr. Johnston have met with the Pharmacy Director regarding the rules 

for this space and the State Board of Pharmacy requirements.  Dr. Sowada suggested the State 

rules be reviewed before making any decisions.  Mr. Blevins left the meeting. 

 

Pharmacy Compounding Room 

This project was approved months ago and has been held up due to COVID.  Mr. Johnston said 

they are waiting on quotes on the required doors which could cost between $12,000 - $14,000 

each.  Once they get the doors ordered they can start the project.  Mr. Kelsey asked if this project 

was being done inhouse.  Mr. Johnston said yes, we are acting as general contractor and subbing 

out to Harris for mechanical. The electrical can be done by our staff. 

 

Grounds Lean To 

Mr. Horan reported they are working on dates to schedule the final flat work and burying of 

conduits.  This project should be completed by the next meeting. 

 

Bulk Oxygen 

Mr. Horan explained the situation with Air Gas, our current contracted vendor for bulk oxygen.  

They have requested an increase in the monthly tank rental to help pay for the removal and 

replacement of the tank and new concrete under the new tank.  The condition of the concrete was 

mentioned during the last Joint Commission survey in relation to other issues with the tank.  All 

of the other issues have been taken care of with the exception of bollard placement. This will be 

done depending on the decision of the concrete replacement.  Dr. Sowada asked about the 

seriousness of a JC finding on this and it was decided it would be minimal.   

 

Powerhouse Roof 

Mr. Horan explained the need for a new roof on the powerhouse as it is 40+ years old and there 

has been some leakage.  He would also like to include fall protection on this new roof.  He is 

estimating the project at $80,000 - $100,000.  Mr. Kelsey recommended waiting until the Spring 

to complete due to weather. 

 

 

 

170/226



 

 

Minutes of the August 18, 2020 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

OB Bathtubs to Showers 

Mr. Horan said he would be taking a capital request to Finance next month for the replacement of 

bathtubs in OB with showers.  Bathtubs are an infection control issue and are not used.  Most of 

the work will be tiling and plumbing and is estimated at about $100,000. 

 

ER Outside Drainage 

Mr. Horan explained the problems we are having with heaving concrete outside the ER entrance.  

This project will be minimal and will not require Board approval. Mr. Kelsey asked if the engineers 

tested for bentonite.  Mr. Horan said they had tested for this. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Richardson said we probably wouldn’t be asking for SLIB grants for any more construction 

projects but maybe some equipment.  She said we do have about $9 million that needs to be 

expended by July 31, 2021.  We need to think about any COVID related construction projects we 

can complete in the timeframe and get started as soon as possible.  She is getting a group together 

to brainstorm more ideas.  One project could be the remodel of the lab/ER area for social 

distancing.  Mr. Kelsey added that we need to make sure these projects are legally permissible 

through the CARES Act rules.  Ms. Richardson said Dr. Pawar has also talked to her about moving 

Dialysis to the basement and how that could be COVID related.  Dr. Sowada mentioned the 

remodel of Medical Imaging as a possible project if we can relate to COVID. 

 

Mr. Horan asked about the type of minutes for this committee.  Mr. Kelsey responded he would 

like to have regular minutes kept for these meetings.  

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

171/226



172/226



173/226



174/226



175/226



176/226



177/226



178/226



179/226



180/226



181/226



182/226



183/226



184/226



185/226



186/226



187/226



188/226



189/226



190/226



191/226



192/226



193/226



194/226



195/226



196/226



197/226



198/226



199/226



200/226



201/226



202/226



203/226



204/226



205/226



206/226



207/226



208/226



209/226



210/226



211/226



212/226



213/226



214/226



215/226



216/226



217/226



218/226



219/226



220/226



221/226



222/226



223/226



224/226



225/226



226/226


	EMPLOYEE POLICIES-CULTURAL DIVERSITY
	Attachments
	CONTRACTS REQUIRING BOARD APPROVAL POLICY
	Utilization Management Plan
	HR Committee Agenda August 2020
	Jan-July Overall Turnover Report - Clinic 
	Clinic Turnover Report

	Agenda - September 2 2020 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision 

	Minutes for August 5 2020
	Minutes for August 12 2020
	Employee Policy-Cultural Diversity 

	1. Attendance of Board Committee Meetings 
	1. Contracts Requiring Board Approval Policy 
	Letter of Appointment ASP 2020
	Infection Prevention Program (IP) 

	Utilization Management Plan 

	FY 2021 PIPS Priorities for Board
	Lab Draft 08_26_20
	LAB Floor Plan R1 Covid Reno 08-26-20
	Quality Committee Chair&apos;s Report August 2020 Marty Kelsey
	8_19_20 Quality Minutes
	Quality Risk Accrediation Safety Summary - August
	Human Resources Committee 

	8-17-20 HR Comm_ Packet to Board for 9-2-20
	EMR Search 2019 2020 Tami Love for September 2 2020 Meeting
	Capital Lease Cerner CommunityWorks EMR FY21 15
	Capital Expenditure Requests 

	Finance and Audit Comm Minutes August 26 2020 Draft
	August 26 2020 Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds Chair&apos;s Report August 2020 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes August 2020 Draft
	Compliance Committee 

	1. Cerner Business Agreement 
	HVAC Upgrade Project Engineering Services 
	Plan 1 Professional Design Services for MOB Entrance Reconfiguration 
	UVC Upgrade Project Engineering Services 

